Calendar Workbook

Blackboard Web Community Manager

Blackboard

Trademark Notice

Blackboard, the Blackboard logos, and the unique trade dress of Blackboard are the trademarks, service marks, trade dress and logos of Blackboard, Inc. All other trademarks, service marks, trade dress and logos used in Blackboard and the Website are the trademarks, service marks, trade dress and logos of their respective owners.

Copyright Notice

© 2016 Blackboard Inc. All rights reserved.

This guide covers all available features and functionality. Features included in your contract may vary.

Table of Contents

Introduction	1
Workspace Calendars	2
Site Workspace Calendar	2
Subsite Workspace Calendar	2
Channel Workspace Calendar	2
Section Workspace Calendar	2
Working with Calendar Views	3
Working with Calendar Events	4
Create a Calendar Events Using New Event	4
Create a Calendar Event by Double Clicking on a Date	5
Calendar Event Types	5
Calendar Event Options	9
Import Events to a Calendar	15
Prepare the CSV File	15
Edit Calendar Events	18
Delete a Calendar Event	18
Export a Series of Events	19
Export a Single Event	20
Working with the Event Queue	21
Awaiting Approval View	21
Approved Events View	22
Declined Events View	22
Working with Event Categories	23
Event Categories Tab	23
Add a Calendar Event Category to a Calendar	23
Set up the Event Category Master List	23
Edit an Existing Event Category on the Master List	24
Using the Calendar as a Visitor to the Website	25
Working with Custom Calendar Views	26
Create a Custom Calendar View	26
Manage Calendar Event Categories in Custom View	28
Printing a Calendar Page or Event	29
Print a Calendar	29

Print a Single Event	30
Using the Calendar as a Registered User	31
View Protected Events	31
Register for an Event	31
View your Registered Events	32
Exercise 1: Add a Detailed Event	33
Exercise 2: Request an Event be Added to the District or School Calendar	33
Exercise 3: Create a Registered Event	33
Exercise 4: Import Events	33

Introduction

The Blackboard Web Community Manager Calendar App is an efficient organizational tool.

There are many functions available when creating events. In addition to adding a date and time to an event you can enter an event description, select a category for the event, make events recurring and require registration for events.

You can import events to a calendar using a comma separated value (CSV) file. You can also set up sync with Google Calendar integration.

DME	ABOUT US	ACI	TIVITIES PI	ROGRAMS	TEACHERS	DEPARTMENTS	CALENDAR	-	
► CL	istomize Calen	dar Vi	ew						
Nov	ember 201	6						ē	ି Export ରି iCa
			_	_				48°	C Export offici
Today	Day	1	Week Mo	nth List				⊕ Nove	ember 🔻 2016 🔻 🔿
	Nov 2016		Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
6		4 5 11 12			1	2	3	4	5
		18 19				Fall Book 6:30pm	Fall Book 7:00pm	Parent Te	
20 2	1 22 23 24	25 26				Home Bas	Band at th	Parent Te	4
27 2	8 29 30		6	7	8	9	10	11	12
	Dec 2016	2 3	122		or Picture Week		12		
4		9 10			8:00am District Sc.				
11 1	2 13 14 15 1	6 17							
	9 20 21 22 2		13	14 6:30pm	15	16	17 Yearbook	18 5:00pm	19
25 2	6 27 28 29 3 Jan 2017	0 31		Home Bas.	-		Tourbook	Movie Nig	
1		6 7						6:30pm Home Bas	
8	9 10 11 12 1	3 14							
15 1	6 17 18 19 2	0 21	20	21	22 1:00pm	23 Thanksoiving E	24 Ireak-Schools Clos	25 ed	26
	3 24 25 26 2	7 28			Holiday A.				
29 3	0 31								
			27	28	29	30			

Workspace Calendars

There are calendars available at all levels of your site - Site Workspace, Subsite Workspace, Channel Workspace and Section Workspace.

Site Workspace Calendar

The calendar within the Blackboard Web Community Manager' *Site Workspace* is the calendar for the main or district *site*. Only a Site Director or a Homepage Editor of the main *site* may access and edit this calendar.

Subsite Workspace Calendar

The calendar within the *Subsite Workspace* is the calendar for that *subsite*. Only a Site Director, a Subsite Director for that *subsite* or a Homepage Editor for that *subsite* may access and edit this calendar.

Channel Workspace Calendar

The calendar within a *Channel Workspace* is the main calendar for a channel. Site Directors, designated Site Directors for the subsite containing the Channel and designated Channel Directors for the channel may access and edit this calendar.

Section Workspace Calendar

The calendar within a *Section Workspace* is the calendar for that *section*. The Section Editor for that *section* can access and edit this calendar. A Site Director may access any calendar. A Subsite Director may access any calendar within the subsite which they manage.

Here's how you access a homepage calendar.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the homepage calendar you wish to edit.
- 2. Click the calendar page on the Summary tab. The calendar displays.

Working with Calendar Views

There are five different calendar views that are available in *Site Manager* and on the end user site. The default Calendar view is the Month View.

- Today shows the calendar for the current day.
- Day shows the calendar one day at a time.
- Week shows the calendar one week at a time.
- Month shows the calendar one month at a time.
- List shows the events for the selected month as a list.

New Event Print	t Today Da	y Week Month	List	<	December 🔻	2011 🔹 💙
			December 2011			
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
				1	2	3

You can use the Arrow icons at the right and left of the Month and Year drop-downs to move ahead or back by one day, week or month. In the Month view you can use the Month and Year drop-down lists to jump to other months or years on the calendar.

Working with Calendar Events

There are three ways to add events to your calendar. You can add events individually using New Event or double clicking on the date you wish the event to occur. You can also import multiple events, export a series of events or an individual event, edit an event and delete an event.

Create a Calendar Events Using New Event

Here's how you add an event using the New Event button.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Click on the **New Event** button. A New Event window will display. Notice it has seven tabs.

Event Ti	itle:																		
Event	Recurrence	Regis	stration	Location	C	Contact	P	ost to Ca	lendars	Vi	ewers								
Enter a s Start D	start date and d ate:	lescription f		vent. If you w	vant, ye	ou can ei	nter a	start time	, end tin	ne, end	date, de	escription	n and cate	gory.					
8/17/2	2015			5 1									• •						
Start Ti	ime:			¥ D	Û	Ê	P	A	t	-	Ω	RBC	4.	Ξ	• 12m	≣ -	₫	Ē	
End Tin 9 AM All End Da 8/17/2	▼ :00 Day ite:	•																	
			p																2
				tegory: bose a categ	ory to	color-co	de you	r event.											
				None				*											
Save	Cancel	Create	E-Alert																

- 5. On the **Event** tab, enter a date for the event.
- 6. Enter the Event Name, the Start Date, and the End Date. All other fields are optional.
- 7. Click Save. You are returned to the Calendar tab of Calendar app.

Create a Calendar Event by Double Clicking on a Date

Here's how you add an event with a double click.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Double click on the date on which the event will occur. As you can see, the start date will be the date you selected (required).
- 5. Click on the **New Event** button. A New Event window will display. Notice it has seven tabs.
- 6. On the **Event** tab, enter a date for the event.
- 7. Enter the **Event Name**, the **Start Date**, and the **End Date**. All other fields are optional.
- 8. Click **Save**. You are returned to the **Calendar** tab of Calendar app.

Calendar Event Types

There are four different types of calendar events you can create.

Create a Mandatory Event

If you are a Site Director or the Homepage Editor for the district site, you can make the event mandatory by selecting *Mandatory Event*. A mandatory event will display on all calendars with a Mandatory Event

icon **a** to the left of the event. Subsite Directors, Homepage Editors for *subsites* and Section Editors cannot make an event mandatory.

Here's how to make an event mandatory.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Click **New Event** to create a new event or edit an existing event.
- 5. Check Mandatory Event.
- 6. Click **Save**. You are returned to the **Calendar** tab of Calendar app.

Create a Registered Event

The **Registration** tab allows you to set up an event that users can register for, while tracking attendees and their responses to custom questions. Adding a custom question allows you to create your own question.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Click **New Event** to create a new event or edit an existing event.
- 5. Navigate to the **Registration** tab.

Event	Recurrence	Registration	Loc ation	Contact	Post to Calendars	Viewers	
Turn	it, you can make on registration n Number of Si	for this event	ered, set the m	aximum numb	er of seats, set a last da	y to register, and add custom registrati	on question
ast Day	to Register						
m/dd/yy							
0 1		ore the event					
	m Question						
Add	Question						
Questi	onTypeActions						

- 6. Select *Turn on registration for this event*. Registration options display.
- 7. Enter a maximum number of seats
- 8. Enter the last day to register
- 9. To include Registration Questions, choose options from the drop-down list.
 - a. Click Add Question. The question type displays.
 - b. Enter the question and then assign the format of the question; open or choice.
- 10. Navigate to the **Contact** tab.
- 11. Enter details for the contact person in the Contact Name and Email fields.
- 12. Click Save. You are returned to the Calendar tab of Calendar app.

A list of registrants to the event is available under the **Rosters** tab in the Calendar App.

Create a Recurring Event

Here's how you add a recurring event to a calendar.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Click **New Event** to create a new event or edit an existing event.
- 5. Navigate to the **Recurrence** tab.

ent	Recurren	ice	Registration	Location	Contact	Post to Calendars	Viewers
	nt, you can e this even			rring by setting	the recurrence	e pattern and range.	
Recu	rrence P	atteri	1				
• D	aily						
0 w	leekly	۲	Every 1	days			
<u>м</u>	onthly	\odot	Every week	lay			
0 Y	early						
Recu	rrence R	ange					
			e your eve <mark>nt</mark> t	o occur.			
• E	nd after 1	D	occurrenc	es			
© E	nd by 8/1	7/201	5]			

- 6. Activate the *Make this event recurring* check box. The **Recurrence** tab displays Recurrence Pattern and Recurrence Range options.
- 7. Select a recurrence pattern.
- 8. Specify a recurrence range. You can end after a number of occurrences or specify an End by date. Note that the End by date is not included in the range if you specify the 25th as the End date, the range actually ends at midnight on the 24th.
- 9. Click Save. You are returned to the Calendar tab of Calendar app.

Create a Recurring Registered Event

Here's how you add a recurring registered event.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Click **New Event** to create a new event or edit an existing event.
- 5. Navigate to the **Recurrence** tab.
- 6. Activate the *Make this event recurring* check box. The **Recurrence** tab displays Recurrence Pattern and Recurrence Range options.
- 7. Select a recurrence pattern.
- 8. Specify a recurrence range. You can end after a number of occurrences or specify an End by date. Note that the End by date is not included in the range if you specify the 25th as the End date, the range actually ends at midnight on the 24th.
- 9. Navigate to the **Registration** tab.
- 10. Select *Turn on registration for this event*. Registration options display.
- 11. Enter a maximum number of seats
- 12. Enter the last day to register
- 13. To include Registration Questions, choose options from the drop-down list.
 - a. Click Add Question. The question type displays.
 - b. Enter the question and then assign the format of the question; open or choice.
- 14. Navigate to the **Contact** tab.
- 15. Enter details for the contact person in the Contact Name and Email fields.
- 16. Click **Save**. You are returned to the **Calendar** tab of Calendar app.

Here are some things to note when editing recurring registered events.

- If you Edit Series and make changes to an event other than date and time or activate the No End Time or All Day check boxes, all events within the series are updated.
- If you Edit Series and change the dates, times, the No End Time or All Day check boxes for an event only the event you modified and the events that occur after it are updated.
- If you make certain changes to an event, you have the option to notify registrants of the changes. Email notifications are sent when you change the Event Title, Description, Location, Zip Code, Start Date, End Date, Start Time, End Time and the All Day Event and No End Time check boxes and activate the Send Change Notification Emails check box.
- If you Edit Series and change the start date of an event in the series, all event occurrences prior to the new start date are deleted. Registrants receive a cancellation Email.
- If you Edit Occurrence and move an event out of an event series range, note that if you Edit Series and change an event start date, all events return to their original position within the series range.
- If someone has registered for an event, you cannot change the recurrence pattern or range of an Event Series.

Calendar Event Options

When creating or editing a calendar event you can set viewers, post the event to another calendar, add an attachment or add location and contact information. If your calendar contains registered events, you can view a roster for those events.

Set Viewers for a Calendar Event

Here's how you add viewers to an event.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Click **New Event** to create a new event or edit an existing event.
- 5. Navigate to the **Viewers** tab.

Event Titl	e:						
Event	Recurrence	Registration	Loc ation	Contact	Post to Calendars	Viewers	
Assign C	1.0	User			to view it by adding spe	cific users or groups.	
Save	Cancel	reate E-Alert					

- 6. You can assign viewing rights to either a group of users or to individual users by clicking on **Assign Group** or **Assign User**. By default all website visitors will be able to view the calendar event.
- 7. Click **Save**. You are returned to the **Calendar** tab of Calendar app.

Calendar Workbook

Post an Event to Another Calendar

In a Subsite, Channel or Section Workspace Calendar you can request an event be placed on a parent calendar. Post to another calendar is not available in the Site Workspace.

Here's how you post an event to another calendar.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Click **New Event** to create a new event or edit an existing event.
- 5. Navigate to the **Post to Calendars** tab.

Event fide.	Add Collections lick on collections to select then ollections you choose.	n. Approval may be required to d	isplay your event on the calenda	ars in the	×
Event Recurrence Re	All Middle School Sections	All Sections in Programs at HVHS	All Subsite Calendars		
Post event to other calend Post to Happy Valley	District and all Subsite Calendars	District and HS Subsite Calendars	District Calendar		
Add Collections Collections contain groups of	fgzxcgfd SXDzx	McCollin	MTK Test		
Save Cancel Create	Rene's Test Collection				
2 3	Add Collections Cance				6

- 6. Activate *Post event to other calendars* to expand the Post to Calendars window.
- 7. Click Add Collections.
- 8. Select the desired collection or collections.
- 9. Click Add Collections.
- 10. Click **Save**. You are returned to the **Calendar** tab of Calendar app.

Add an Attachment to a Calendar

You can attach a file to a calendar event. The Attachments tab will show once you save the calendar event. If you are creating a new event, you must save the event and then edit the event to add attachments—the **Attachments** tab displays after the initial save.

Here's how you add an attachment to a calendar.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Double click on an existing event to edit it.
- 5. Navigate to the **Attachments** tab.

First I	e: Day of Scho						
	Recurrence ht, you can add dor chments	Registration wnloadable attachr	Location ments to your e	Contact event.	Post to Calendars	Viewers	Attachments
Save	Cancel	reate E-Alert					

- 6. Click **Add Attachments** to open the Upload Attachments window.
- 7. Click **Select Files.** Highlight the files you wish to attach and click **Open**. Note that you can also drag-and-drop the files you wish to attach.
- 8. Click **Upload** to upload the file.
- 9. Click **Save**. You are returned to the **Calendar** tab of Calendar app.

Calendar Workbook

View the Roster for a Registered Event

Rosters are lists of registered users who have signed up for registered events on your calendar. Each registered event has its own roster. All event rosters for a given calendar can be found in the **Rosters** tab of your calendar app.

Here's how you view a roster for a registered event.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Navigate to the **Rosters** tab. The Rosters window will display.

Calendar	Import Events	Event Queue	Event Categories	Rosters					
Manage even	t rosters and registra	ations. You may filte	r your Rosters by date	range.					
		to		Filter B	y Date				
0 Registere	taff Meeting d Users 2:30:00 PM to 2/10/2	2014 1:30:00 PM					View	Export	Print
DETAILS									

- 5. Click **View**, the Event Registrants window will display. You can mark registrants as present or absent, cancel the registration, see registrant contact information and see registrant answers to custom questions.
- 6. Click **Export**, a dialog box will display.
- 7. You can choose to **Open** or **Save** the file.

1.12	rosoft Office Excel Comma Separated Values File 2.swtrain8.schoolwires.net
/hat should Firefo	x do with this file?
Open with	Microsoft Office Excel (default)
DownThem	All!
🔘 dTa OneClic	ck! 👎 🛛 C:\Users\vjacobs\Downloads\ 🗸
Save File	
Do this auto	matically for files like this from now on.

- 8. If you wish to print a roster for an event, click **Print**. The Print window will display.
- 9. Click **OK** to print the roster.

Add Location Information to a Calendar Event

Here's how you add location information to a calendar event.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Click **New Event** to create a new event or edit an existing event.
- 5. Navigate to the **Location** tab.

Event Titl	e:						
Event	Recurrence	Registration	Location	Contact	Post to Calendars	Viewers	
lf you wan	nt, you can enter lo	cation information	12				
Location	Name:						
Address	0						
City Stat	te, Zip Code						
City, sta	te, zip code)[]			
DbA 🗌	a map of this lo	cation to your e	vent.				
Save	Cancel	reate E-Alert					

- 6. Enter the location information for your event.
- 7. Click **Save**. You are returned to the **Calendar** tab of Calendar app.

Add Contact Information to a Calendar Event

Here's how you add contact information to a calendar event.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Click **New Event** to create a new event or edit an existing event.
- 5. Navigate to the **Contact** tab.

Event Tit	le:						
Event	Recurrence	Registration	Location	Contact	Post to Calendars	Viewers	
Enter a co	ontact name and e	mail ad <mark>d</mark> ress. If yo	u want, you ca	an enter a we	bsite ad <mark>d</mark> ress and a cor	ntact phone number.	
Web Add	dress:						
Contact	Name:						
Email:							
(
Phone:		_					
Save	Cancel	reate E-Alert					

- 6. Enter contact information for your event.
- 7. Click **Save**. You are returned to the **Calendar** tab of Calendar app.

Import Events to a Calendar

Site Directors, Subsite Directors, Channel Directors, Section Editors and Homepage Editors can import events to their calendars.

Prepare the CSV File

You can import events using a comma separated value (CSV) file. During the import, you are required to map the fields in your CSV file to the Web Community Manager calendar fields. These are the calendar fields you can map.

- Start Date (required field)
- Start Time
- End Date
- End Time
- Event Title (required)
- Event Description
- All Day Event
- No End Time
- Contact
- Contact Email
- Contact Phone
- Location
- Category
- Mandatory
- Registration
- Maximum Number of Seats
- Last Date to Register

You cannot import recurring events. You will need to add these events to the calendar manually or add all of the dates for the event in the CSV file.

Prepare the CSV file and save it to your computer. You can download a sample file from within the **Import Events** tab or on the **How Do I...** tab and then modify it to include the events you wish to import.

When specifying a category for an event use the Category ID number, which you will find on the **Event Categories** tab.

After School Activity Category ID:29

Here is an <u>example</u> of a CSV file that you use to import calendar events.

Importing Events

Here's how you import calendar events.

- 1. Navigate to the Import Events tab.
- 2. Click Import Events, the Import Wizard will display.

Science-1	12 Calendar					🗘 Options
Calendar	Import Events	Event Queue	Event Categories	Rosters		
Import Ever		aven't import	ed any events.	Click Import Eve	ents to get started.	

- 3. Click Browse.
- 4. Select the file you wish to import.
- 5. Click Open.

Step 1: Select your file. Browse for your CSV import file. Click here to download a sample CSV import file. ?	
Browse	
	Cancel

- 6. Click **Next**. The Match field mappings window displays.
- 7. By default New Custom Mapping displays in the Import Mappings drop-down. If you wish to use a previously created custom mapping, chose it from the drop-down list.

Step 2: Match field ma	appings	
Choose an import mapping and	match the Calendar	fields to the fields from your CSV f
Import Mappings Choose an existing mapping of	r create your own by	y selecting New Custom Mapping.
New Custom Mapping	•	
?		
Calendar Field	Map to CSV	File Field
Start Date	-Ignore-	•
Start Time	-Ignore-	•
End Data	-lanore-	T

8. If you use the default of New Custom Mapping, all the *Map to CSV File* Fields display as *Ignore*. Use the drop-down lists to select the fields from the import file you wish to map to the Calendar fields. You do not need to map all of the fields. The only two fields that must be mapped are Start Date and Event Title.

- 9. Click Next. The Preview your events window displays.
 - a. If you selected an existing mapping, a Preview window will display. You can use the scroll bar at the bottom of the window to see all the information about the events being imported.
 - b. If you create a new mapping, a Preview window will display. If you would like to save this mapping for use in future imports, click *Save this Mapping as* and enter a title for the mapping.
 - c. If you wish to use this mapping as the default mapping for future event imports, click *Make this the default mapping*.

Save	ts from y e this n		as:	ear below. If you wa	ant, you can sa	ive your n	apping for	future use and flag it as the de	fault ma	pping.			
Start Date	Start Time	End Date	End Time	Event Title	Event Description	All Day Event	Contact	Contact Email	Locatio	onCatego	ryRegistration	Maximum Number of Seats	
9/5/2011				Social Studies Dept. Meeting	Department	Ν	Chris Gallagher	cgallagher@schoolwires.com	High School	2	Ν	25	9/2/2011
9/5/2011	6:00:00 PM	9/5/2011	18:00:00 PM	Curriculum Meeting	Curriculum Meeting	Ν	Chris Gallagher	cgallagher@schoolwires.com	High School	2	N	25	9/2/2011
											Ca	ancel Ba	ck Next

- 10. Click **Next**. The Assign viewing rights window displays.
- 11. Use the Viewing Rights window to specify who may view the events.
 - a. By default all website visitors will be able to view these calendar events.
 - b. To limit who can view these events, you can assign viewing rights to either a group of users or to individual users by clicking **Assign Group** or **Assign User**.

		e these events.			
	visitors can view these ca	ilendar events. To limit who	an view these calendar eve	nts, add specific users or group	ps.
Il visitors to the	e website can viev	w your events.			

Use a separate import file for public events and internal (staff meetings, etc.) events. You can then set the Viewing Rights for the internal events to only be viewed by the groups or users specified.

12. Click **Import**. The **Import** tab will return as the active window. The import you just completed will display in the list.

If the import encounters errors during processing, a **View Exceptions** button displays. Click **View Exceptions** to display the errors encountered. Click the Download button to display the Exceptions in an easy to read format.

If you have a need to *roll back* the import at any time, click on the **Undo Import** button.

Edit Calendar Events

Here's how you edit an event.

- 1. Position the mouse on the event and click **Edit**. The full Edit Event window for that event will display.
- 2. Make changes to the event information on all the tabs.
 - When editing a registered event, be certain to click *Send Change Notification Emails* to notify anyone registered for the event of the changes.
 - If the event is a Recurring event, you can choose to edit just one occurrence or the entire series.
- 3. Click **Save**. You are returned to the **Calendar** tab of Calendar app.

Delete a Calendar Event

Here's how you delete an event.

- 1. Position the mouse on the event and click **Delete**. A confirmation dialog displays.
- 2. Click **Yes**. The event is deleted.

If the event you are deleting is a Recurring event, a dialog will display asking if you wish to delete a single occurrence or the series.

Delete Recurring Eve	nt
This is a recurring event. Would you like to delete only th	nis occurrence or the entire series?
Delete this Occurrence	Delete the Series Cancel

Export a Series of Events

Here's how you export a series of events.

- 1. Navigate to the Calendar on the end-user website.
- 2. You can add or remove calendars and categories to display the events you wish to include.
- 3. Click **Export** in the upper right corner of the calendar. The Calendar Export dialog will display

CALENDAR EXPORT
Start Date:
End Date:
Export Cancel

- 4. Select the date range that you would like to export by entering a Start and End Date
- 5. Click **Export.** The file is downloaded.

You may see a dialog box. Select options appropriate for your needs.

This file exports in iCalendar format (.ics file) which can then be imported into any program or device that supports this format.

Export a Single Event

Here's how you export a single event.

- 1. Select the event you wish to export.
- 2. Click **Export**. The Calendar Export dialog box displays.

	perintendent's Forum 2014 8:00 AM - 11:00 AM	🛗 Go To Calendar 🛛 😝 Print 🛹 Export
*	Description Come join the Superintendent's Forum. Review the notes from the last meeting.	Location Board Room 330 Innovation Blvd State College, PA 16803 Enter your zip code to calculate the distance to event
c	Contact Mr. Darcy Email: fdarcy@pandp.or Website: http://c2.swtrain8.schoolwires.net	Submit
	Registration Seat Availability: 10 of 10 available. Last day to register: 2/20/2014 Register	

3. Click **Export.** The file is downloaded.

You may see a dialog box. Select options appropriate for your needs.

This file exports in iCalendar format (.ics file) which can then be imported into any program or device that supports this format.

Working with the Event Queue

There are several ways that you can post an event to other Web Community Manager calendars. You can create an event on the District calendar and flag it as Mandatory. You can create an event on any calendar other than the District calendar and flag it to post to its parent calendar. And, you can create an event on any calendar and use a Collection to post it to other calendars. If an event needs to be approved before it appears on the calendar, it displays in the calendar Event Queue. In the Event Queue tab you can select from Awaiting Approval, Approved Events or Declined Events views.

Here's how to access the Event Queue.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Navigate to the **Event Queue** tab.

Awaiting Approval View

In the Awaiting Approval view, you can review, approve and decline events.

istrict Calendar	💷 🗏 🗘 Optio
Calendar Import Events Event Queue Event Categories Rosters	
pprove or Deny requests from other editors to post events on this calendar.	
Awaiting Approval	
ITLE	DATE/TIME ACTION
HVMS Band Concert lappy Valley School District / Happy Valley Middle School	1/21/2011 7:00:00 PM Approve Decline
Career Day Iappy Valley School District / Happy Valley High School	10/5/2011 10:00:00 AM Approve Decline
Friday Assembly	5/4/2012 2:00:00 PM Approve Decline
lappy Valley School District / Happy Valley High School	

To approve an event, click **Approve** to the right of the event. That event will display on the calendar. It will no longer display in the Awaiting Approval view of the Event Queue.

To decline an event, click **Decline** to the right of the event. The event will not be posted to the calendar.

Approved Events View

In the *Already Approved* view, you can view events that have been approved and choose to decline a previously approved event.

District Ca	alendar					Option
Calendar	Import Events	Event Queue	Event Categories	Rosters		
Approve or D Approved Ev		other editors to po	st events on this calend	an		
TITLE					DATE/TIME	ACTION
Space Syr	nposium		school / Staff / Sparks, E		6/1/2015 6:00:00 PM	Decline

To decline a previously approved event, click **Decline** to the right of the event.

Declined Events View

In the *Declined Events* view, you can view events that have been declined and choose to approve a previously declined event.

District C	alendar				-	Deption
Calendar	Import Events	Event Queue	Event Categories	Rosters		
Approve or D	eny requests from	other editors to po	st events on this calend	ar.		
Declined Ev	ents	•				
TITLE					DATE/TIME	ACTION
Friday As: Happy Valle	s <mark>embly</mark> y School District / Hi	appy Valley High S	School		5/4/2012 2:00:00 PI	M Approve

To approve a previously declined event, click **Approve** to the right of the event.

Working with Event Categories

The Calendar includes an **Event Category** tab which displays the categories associated with the calendar and what each represents. Click the tab to display the categories within a window.

Calendar	Import Events	Event Queue	Event Categories	Rosters	
elect categ	ories from the master	r list that you would	like to make available	to editors of this calendar. 🕐	
Select Cate	egories				
COLOR C	ATEGORY				
	ssignment				Remove
C	ategory ID: 44				
	lementary School	Ľ			Remov
C	ategory ID: 45				
F	ield Trip				Remov
C	ategory ID: 40				renov
Н	ligh School				Dente
	ategory ID: 47				Remo

Event Categories Tab

An editor can enhance the usability of the calendar by assigning categories to events. This allows visitors to your website to view color-coded calendar events and to apply category filters to their calendar views.

Add a Calendar Event Category to a Calendar

Here's how you add an Event Category to a calendar.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, navigate to the workspace containing the Calendar app you wish to edit.
- 2. Click **Actions** to the right of the page and select *Edit Page* from the drop-down list. The page opens in Edit Mode.
- 3. Click on the Calendar App. The app opens.
- 4. Navigate to the **Event Categories** tab.
- 5. Click Select Categories.
- 6. Search for the event category you wish to add to the calendar category drop-down menu.
- 7. Check the box next to the category you wish to add.
- 8. Click Save.

Site Administrators set up the categories for events for the entire *site* (this includes the main *site* and all *subsites, channels* and *sections*).

Set up the Event Category Master List

Here's how a System Administrator creates an Event Category master list.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, expand the Configure menu in the Content Browser.
- 2. Click Calendar Assets. The Event Categories tab of the Calendar Assets Workspace displays.
- 3. Click **New Category**. The New Category window displays.
- 4. Enter a unique Event Category Name.
- 5. Click the Color box and select the color for the category from the color picker.
- 6. Check Display on all calendars so this category is available for use on all calendars.
- 7. Click Save. The Event Categories tab displays with the new category listed.

Edit an Existing Event Category on the Master List

Here's how a System Administrator edits event categories on a master list.

- 1. In *Site Manager*, expand the Configure menu in the Content Browser.
- 2. Click Calendar Assets. The Event Categories tab of the Calendar Assets Workspace displays.
- 3. Click the name of the Category you wish to edit. The Edit Category window displays.
- 4. Edit the Category Name, Color and the calendar display setting as required.
- 5. Click **Save**. The **Event Categories** tab in the Calendar Assets Workspace displays.

If you change the name of the category, all events currently in that category will now display the new category name.

If you delete the name of the category, all events assigned that category will now display *None* as the category name and the color coding is removed.

Using the Calendar as a Visitor to the Website

When visitors to the website open a calendar, they see the calendar that they selected. By applying filters, visitors can merge calendars and see all the events they wish to see on one calendar.

10	ve	m	ber	20	10							ē	ି Export ରି iCa
Tod	lay			Day	Y	V	Veek Mor	th List				 Nove 	ember ▼ 2016 ▼) ⊖
		No	v 20		4		Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
6	7			10					1	2	3	4	5
		15		177		19				Fall Book	Fall Book	Parent Te	
				24	25	28				6:30pm Home Bas	7:00pm Band at th	Parent Te	
		29											
		De	c 20	016			6	7	8	9	10	11	12
				1	2	з		HVHS Senio	or Picture Week 8:00am				
4	5	6	7	8	9	10			District Sc				
11				15			10		15	40		10	10
18				22			13	14 6:30pm	15	16	17 Yearbook	18 5:00pm	19
25	26			29	30	31		Home Bas	-			Movie Nig	
1	2		1 20 4	5	6	7						6:30pm Home Bas	
8	9	10	11	12	13	14							
15	16	17	18	19	20	21	20	21	22 1:00pm	23	24	25	26
22	23	24	25	26	27	28			Holiday A	Thanksgiving	g Break-Schools Cl	osed	
29	30	31											
							27	28	29	30			

Working with Custom Calendar Views

By setting a custom calendar view, visitors to your website can tailor their calendar views to their needs. Mandatory events from the main *site* will display on all calendars regardless.

Create a Custom Calendar View

Here's how to create a customized view on the end-user website.

1. Click on the arrow to the left of *Customize Calendar View* on the top left of the calendar. Customize Calendar View will expand.

Custon Januar	nize Calenda y 2017	ar View			ġ	☆ My Events	ල් Export	ି iCal
Today	Day	Week	Month	List		⊖ Jar	nuary 🔻 201	17 ▼ ⊖

2. To add or remove calendars to a custom view, click the pencil icon next to Calendars. The **add/remove** button displays.

▼ Customize Calendar View	
CALENDAR District Calendar add/remove	
I'm Done	

- 3. Click add/remove. The Site tab in the Choose Calendars window displays.
- 4. On the **Sites** tab, select the specific Site or Subsite calendars you with to add to your custom view.

Choose Calendars Select calendars to include in your custom view. Events from adde	d calendars will show on your custom view.
Sites Other Areas	
Happy Valley Elementary School	🖉 Happy Valley High School
Happy Valley Middle School	Happy Valley School District
I'm Done	

5. On the **Other Areas** tab, select other calendars you wish to add to your custom view.

ites Other Areas				
appy Valley School District	All Channels	Search		
Calendar App Happy Valley School District / About Us / Contacts	Contacts Calendar Happy Valley School District / About Us / Contacts	Academics Calendar Happy Valley School District / Academics		
Contact Us Calendar Happy Valley School District / Academics / Contact Us	Curriculum Calendar Happy Valley School District / Academics / Curriculum Guides	Honor Roll Calendar Happy Valley School District / Academics / Hono Roll		
Alumni Calendar Happy Valley School District / Alumni	Class Reunions Calendar Happy Valley School District / Alumni / Class Reuions	Contact Calendar Happy Valley School District / Alumni / Contact		
Athletics Calendar Happy Valley School District / Athletics	Calendar App Happy Valley School District / Athletics / Baseball	Calendar App Happy Valley School District / Athletics / Baseb		
Departments Calendar Happy Valley School District / Departments	Calendar App Happy Valley School District / Departments / Generic User Department Section	Music Calendar Happy Valley School District / Departments / Music		

- 6. Click **I'm Done**. The customized view of the calendar displays.
- 7. Click **I'm Done** to save your custom view.



Manage Calendar Event Categories in Custom View

Users have the ability to determine which categories they want or do not want to see.

Here's how you include specific Event Categories in the custom view of a calendar.

1. Click on the arrow to the left of *Customize Calendar View* on the top left of the calendar. Customize Calendar View will expand.

► Custon Januar	nize Calenda y 2017	Ir View			ල් ු My Events ල Export බ iCal
Today	Day	Week	Month	List	⊕ January ▼ 2017 ▼

- Click on the pencil icon next to Categories. The add/remove button displays. All the categories are selected to ensure that you can see every event on the calendars selected on the Sites or Other Areas tabs within the Choose Calendars window.
- 3. Click **add/remove**. The Select Categories window displays.

Unassigned x Start Meeting x After School Activity	x Assembly x Assignment a	x Athletic Event x Athletic P	ractice x Back to School Nigh	nt x
District-wide Meeting x Elementary School x Field T				
Homework - Sparks Literature x In-Service x Middle	School x Musical or Art Event >	No School x Parent Teache	r Conference x Presentation	x PTO/PTA Meeting x
Quiz x School Board Meeting x SCI12 - Class x Sc	CI12 - Exam x SCI12 - Lab x	SCI12 - Quiz x SCI12/SEC 001	-Assignment x SCI12/SEC 0	02-Assignment x
Special Meeting x Staff Meeting x add/remove				

- 4. Select the categories to be included in the custom view and deselect categories you wish to remove
- 5. Click **I'm Done**. The customized view of the calendar displays.
- 6. Click I'm Done to save your custom view.

CATEGORIES #		
Unassigned x Staff Meeting x After School Activity x Assembly x Assignment District-wide Meeting x Elementary School x Field Trip x Funraiser x High Sch		
Homework - Sparks Literature x In-Service x Middle School x Musical or Art Even		
Quiz x School Board Meeting x SCI12 - Class x SCI12 - Exam x SCI12 - Lab x	SCI12 - Quiz x SCI12/SEC 001-Assignment	x SCI12/SEC 002-Assignment x
Special Meeting x Staff Meeting x add/remove		
I'm Done		

Printing a Calendar Page or Event

Visitors to your website can print a calendar page or an event.

Print a Calendar

Here's how you print a calendar.

- 1. Navigate to and open the Calendar. The Calendar displays in the default Month format.
- 2. To change the viewing format, select **Today, Day, Week**, or **List** option. The Calendar view changes.

No	Ve	m	ber	20	016	5							ି Export ରି i
Тос	lay			Da	ıy	1	Veek Mor	nth List	\supset			← Nove	mber 🔻 2016 💌 (
				010		-	sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
6	7		2			5			1	2	3	4	5
-		15				19				Fall Book	Fall Book	Parent Te	
										6:30pm Home Bas	7:00pm Band at th	Parent Te	
		22 29		24	20	26				Home bas	banu at ur		
46	20			016			6	7	8	9	10	11	12
		De	62		2	3		HVHS Senior	r Picture Week				
4	5	6	7	8					8:00am District Sc				
11	12	13	14	15	16	17			District Oc				
18	19	20	21	22	23	24	13	14	15	16	17	.18	19
25	26	27	28	29	30	31		6:30pm Home Bas			Yearbook	5:00pm Movie Nig	
		Ja	n 20	017				Tione Das	×.			6:30pm	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7						Home Bas	
8	9	10	11	12	13	14		- 24	22		24	05	-
15	16	17	18	19	20	21	20	21	22 1:00pm	23 Thanksolving	24 g Break-Schools Clo	25 sed	26
22	23	24	25	26	27	28			Holiday A				
29	30	31											
							27	20	20	20			
							27	28	29	30			

- 3. Click **Print**. A print preview window displays.
- 4. Click **Print**. Your calendar view prints.

Print a Single Event

Here's how you print a single event.

- 1. Click on the event you wish to print. Event Information will display.
- 2. Click on the **Print** on the upper right of the Event Information window. A Print dialog will display.

SAT Exam Structured Practice		🛗 Go To Calendar 📳 🤗 Export
☆ Description	M Location	
SAT Math Practice	HVHS Study Lab	
& Contact		
Mr. Eric Sparks		
Phone: 814-555-1212		
Email: esparks@hvsd.org		
Website: http://hvhs/.com		
Registration Seat Availability: 15 of 15 available.		
Seat Availability: 15 of 15 available.		
Last day to register: 11/26/2016	199	
Register		

- 3. Make adjustments to your print options as required.
- 4. Click **Print**. The event you selected will print.

Using the Calendar as a Registered User

All visitors who view a calendar on your website have access to these features.

- Display a calendar using Monthly, Weekly, Daily and List views
- View Calendar Categories and identify what each represents
- Utilize iCal
- Include events from other calendars
- Print an event or a calendar
- Export a single event or a group of events

Registered users have access to these addition features.

- View right-protected events
- Register for events
- Review and manage their event registrations

View Protected Events

If an editor has assigned viewing rights to an event, a registered user must sign in and be assigned viewing rights to see the event.

Register for an Event

To register for an event, you must be a registered user of your site.

Here's how you register for an event.

- 1. Sign in to the site and access the calendar.
- 2. Click on the event. An Event Information window will display.

Registration	Nor REC.
Seat Availability: 10 of 10 available.	ALS
Last day to register: 2/20/2014	100
Register	

- 3. Click **Register**. A Registration window will display.
- 4. Complete your registration.
- 5. Click **Register Now**, the calendar will display and you will be registered for the event. If you have not signed in, you will be prompted to do so. If you have already registered for the event, you will have the option to review your registration, change the question answers or cancel the registration.



View your Registered Events

Once you have registered for an event, **My Events** will display in the top right of any calendar. You must be signed in to access this information. To access My Events, click **My Events** and the View My Events window will display.

Here's what is available in **My Events**.

- A list of the events for which you have registered.
- The status of your registrations
- Clicking **View** will give you the ability to access to event information.
- Clicking **Remove** will cancel your registration.
- Clicking **I'm Done** will return you to the calendar by clicking the I'm Done button.

All the events for which you've registered on this website are listed below. to Filter by Date			
Friday Lunch & Learn	G		-
Registered 2/14/2014 11:30 AM - 12:30 PM	Vie	WH	temove
Superintendent's Forum			
Registered 2/21/2014 8:00 AM - 11:00 AM	Vie	WR	ternove
T'm Done			

Exercise 1: Add a Detailed Event

- 1. Sign-in and access Site Manager.
- 2. Open the calendar and select a date in the near future and add an event.
- 3. Enter Event information.
 - a. Make the event reoccurring.
 - b. Add location information.
 - c. Set Viewing Rights for the event.
 - d. Click Save.
- 4. View the event from the end-users perspective.
- 5. Check to make sure your viewing rights worked (i.e., sign out and try to view).

Exercise 2: Request an Event be Added to the District or School Calendar

- 1. Sign-in and access Site Manager.
- 2. Go to a subsite / channel / section calendar.
- 3. Open the calendar.
- 4. Find the event you wish to use and click on the **Edit** button.
- 5. Check the appropriate box and click **Save**.

Exercise 3: Create a Registered Event

- 1. Sign-in and access Site Manager.
- 2. Open the calendar.
- 3. You can either create a new event, or edit an existing event.
- 4. Enter or Update the Event Info.
 - a. Add Contact and Location information.
 - b. Enter the Registration information.
 - c. Ask at least one custom question
 - d. Click Save.
- 5. Register for the event.
- 6. View the Registration roster.

Exercise 4: Import Events

- 1. Prepare the CSV file
 - a. Download the sample CVS file from the Import tab or How Do I tab.
 - b. Add at least two Registered events and four nonregistered events
 - c. Site Directors add at least two Mandatory events
- 2. Sign-in and access Site Manager.
- 3. Open the calendar.
- 4. Click on the **Import Events** tab.
- 5. Click Import.
- 6. Browse out to where you have the file saved.
- 7. Click Next.
- 8. Set field Mappings and click Next.
- 9. Follow the on-screen instructions to import your events.
- 10. View the events from the end-users perspective.